

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE
AS PASSED BY THE
One Hundred and Sixth Legislature
1ST SPECIAL SESSION
JANUARY 2, 1974 TO MARCH 29, 1974
AND BY THE
One Hundred and Seventh Legislature
REGULAR SESSION
JANUARY 1, 1975 TO JULY 2, 1975

PUBLISHED BY THE DIRECTOR OF LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REVISED STATUTES OF 1964, TITLE 3,
SECTION 164, SUBSECTION 6.

THE KNOWLTON AND MCLEARY COMPANY
FARMINGTON, MAINE
1975

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE
One Hundred and Seventh Legislature

1975

4. Ruling on application. The commission may upon receipt of any application forthwith render its approval relative to that application. The commission shall advise the applicant that his license and additional license may be revoked and suspended under section 401.

Effective October 1, 1975

CHAPTER 123

AN ACT to Revise the Laws Relating to the State Board for Registration of Architects.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. 32 MRSA § 102, first ¶, is amended to read:

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to apply to the supervision of construction of residential property or to landscape architects and marine or naval architects when acting within the scope of their profession or occupation, or to officers or employees of the Government of the United States while engaged within the State in the practice of architecture for said government, or to any person while in the regular employment of a public utility, or to any person who is qualified under the law to use the title "professional engineer," provided such person may do such architectural work as is incidental to his engineering work and any person registered hereunder may do such engineering work as is incidental to his architectural work.

Sec. 2. 32 MRSA § 151, 2nd ¶, first sentence, is amended to read:

The board shall be composed of 5 practicing architects, or 4 practicing architects and one professor of architecture, who shall be appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Council. ~~to serve for 3 years and~~ The term of office of each present member of the board shall expire as now provided. The successors to the first 3 terms of office to expire shall be appointed for 2-year terms, thereafter all members shall be appointed for 3-year terms. All board members shall serve until their successors are duly appointed and qualified.

Sec. 3. 32 MRSA § 152 is amended to read:

§ 152. Qualifications for members

Each member of the board shall be a citizen of the United States, a resident of this State and an architect of recognized standing who shall have been engaged in the independent practice of architecture for at least ~~to~~ 5 years ~~previous to his prior~~ appointment, with the exception of one member who may be the head of a department a professor of architecture in any college or university of this State and whose combined experience in practice and teaching shall not be less than ~~to~~ 5 years, at least 2 of which shall have been in the active practice of architecture as a profession.

Sec. 4. 32 MRSA § 153, first ¶, 3rd sentence, is amended to read:

The members of the board shall each receive as compensation for their services ~~\$10~~ \$35 a day for the time actually spent and their necessary expenses

incurred in the discharge of their duties, to be certified by the secretary of the board.

Sec. 5. 32 MRSA § 153, 2nd ¶, 3rd sentence, is amended to read:

The secretary may or may not be a member of the board and ~~he~~ shall receive an annual salary to be fixed by the board not to exceed ~~\$200~~ \$5,000, which shall be in lieu of a per diem compensation.

Sec. 6. 32 MRSA § 154 is amended by adding a new paragraph after the first paragraph to read:

The board shall, in accordance with the purpose and intent of the law and the standards set forth in this chapter, make such other reasonable rules and regulations as are appropriate to establish and maintain a high standard of integrity and dignity among registered architects. These shall include rules and regulations concerning misconduct, relations with clients, relations with other architects, compensation, fee splitting, advertising and standards of workmanship.

Sec. 7. 32 MRSA § 201, 2nd ¶, is amended to read:

As used in this chapter, the practice of architecture shall consist of rendering or offering to render service to clients by consultations, investigations, preliminary studies, plans, specifications, contract documents and a coordination of structural factors concerning the aesthetic or structural design and ~~supervision inspection~~ of construction of buildings or any other service in connection with the designing or ~~supervision inspection~~ of construction of buildings located within the State, regardless of whether such persons are performing one or all of these duties, or whether they are performed in person or as the directing head of an office or organization performing them.

Sec. 8. 32 MRSA § 202, sub-§ 1, first sentence, is amended to read:

To be qualified for admission to the examination to practice architecture in this State an applicant shall be at least ~~25~~ 21 years of age, a graduate of an approved ~~4-year~~ senior high school including not less than one year in the basic science of chemistry and physics and 3 years of mathematics, or equivalent training, and after completion thereof ~~he~~ must have had:

Sec. 9. 32 MRSA § 202, sub-§ 1, ¶ B, is repealed.

Sec. 10. 32 MRSA § 202, sub-§ 1, ¶ C, is amended to read:

C. Training or practical experience, or a combination of both, which in the opinion of the board, is fully equivalent to that required in ~~paragraphs~~ paragraph A ~~or B~~.

Sec. 11. 32 MRSA § 204, sub-§ 1, is amended to read:

1. Application for registration. For an application for ~~examination and~~ registration, an amount to be fixed by the board which shall at no time exceed the sum of ~~\$100~~ \$50;

Sec. 12. 32 MRSA § 204, sub-§ 1-A, is enacted to read:

1-A. Examination fee. For an examination fee, an amount to be fixed by the board;

Sec. 13. 32 MRSA § 204, sub-§ 3, is amended to read:

3. Renewal. For the annual renewal of a registration certificate, an amount to be fixed by the board which shall at no time exceed the sum of ~~\$70~~ \$25;

Sec. 14. 32 MRSA § 204, sub-§ 4, is amended to read:

4. Restoration. For the restoration of a lapsed, suspended or revoked certificate, an amount to be fixed by the board which at no time shall exceed the sum of ~~\$25~~ \$50.

Sec. 15. 32 MRSA § 205, sub-§ 3, is amended to read:

3. Nonresident architects. For nonresident architects, the board may, upon application therefor and the payment of a fee equivalent to that required for a regular written examination and certificate not to exceed \$200, issue a certificate of registration to any such applicant who holds an unexpired certificate of registration issued to him by any state or territory or possession of the United States or any country, provided the requirements of the registration of architects under which said certificate of registration was issued do not contravene this chapter and are deemed the equivalent of requirements for registration in this State by examination, and provided the applicant submit such other evidence of his ability as may be required by the board.

Sec. 16. 32 MRSA § 207, 2nd ¶, is repealed.

Effective October 1, 1975

CHAPTER 124

AN ACT Relating to Limit of Insurance Risk Exposure under the Maine Insurance Code.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

24-A MRSA § 3623, sub-§ 1, as enacted by PL 1969, c. 132, § 1, is amended to read:

1. Except as provided in section 3607, subsection 1, an insurer shall not retain liability as to any one risk in an amount exceeding 10% of its gross assets, including 80% surplus and in addition 8% of the amount at any time due on its premium notes.

Effective October 1, 1975